
#1a 
April 11, 2013 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BUDGET WORKSHOP MEETING OF THE HONORABLE MAYOR 
AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, held in the Council Chambers, 
88 E. Chicago Street, on Monday, March 11, 2013.  
 
THE MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY MAYOR JAY TIBSHRAENY at 5:10 p.m.  
 
The following members were present: Jay Tibshraeny Mayor 
      Jack Sellers  Vice-Mayor 
      Rick Heumann Councilmember 
      Jeff Weninger  Councilmember  
      Trinity Donovan Councilmember 
      Kevin Hartke  Councilmember 
      Nora Ellen  Councilmember 
         
 
Also in attendance: Rich Dlugas, City Manager; Pat McDermott,  Assistant City Manager; Mary 
Wade, City Attorney;  Marla Paddock, City Clerk; Dawn Lang, Management Services Director; 
Greg Westrum, Budget Manager; David Bigos, Mayor & Council Asst. 
 
Mayor Tibshraeny said this was the second workshop of the City Council.  An all-day Budget 
Meeting will be held on May 3rd.   
 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR DAWN LANG said they received the state shared 
revenue update today.  She stated it looks better than the prior estimate.  She stated at the last 
update, she reported approximately $356,000 more of ongoing revenue than expenditures.  This 
gives additional opportunity to absorb more ongoing.  
 
ASSESSED VALUE UPDATE: 
 
Budget Manager Greg Westrum said the Primary Assessed Value was -4% and -3.5% for the 
Secondary Assessed Value.  Councilmember Heumann asked if staff would change the 
projections for the out years.  Mr. Westrum said they haven’t yet.  They are still projecting flat, but 
they will be monitoring it.  
 
Mr. Westrum said the bond funding is still constrained.  There is no increase in the secondary 
property tax rate.  The existing CIP Projects are being maintained, but there are some additional 
park projects.   
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN SUMMARY:  
 
This year’s CIP is $841 million.  The preliminary budget for next year is $878 million for a 4% 
increase.   
 
The Council was provided graphs showing the CIP Projects for the two 5-year periods.  In 
response to questions from Council, it was noted the bonding approval for the museum and 
police driving track is specifically identified and voter approved for those two projects.   
 
Mr. Westrum said the full version of the CIP Book would be distributed to Council in April.   
 
 



Minutes of the Special Meeting 
Chandler City Council 
Monday, March 11, 2013 
Page 2 

Mr. Westrum reviewed the major changes from the current CIP: 
 
Gilbert Road is fully funded in FY13-14, Relocation of Fire Station No. 1 accelerated to FY13-14 
using one time general fund dollars, and converting the existing Fire Station No. 1 to usable 
space is accelerated to FY15-16.  
 
Mr. Westrum reviewed the arterial street schedule.   
COUNCILMEMBER WENINGER noted there were two years in between design and construction 
for McQueen Road.  He asked if things changed in the budget next year for the better, if that 
project would start earlier.  Mr. Westrum replied that would be a potential.  Part of that money will 
come from return money from Prop 400 after construction of Gilbert Road.  If Gilbert Road gets 
completed earlier, it is a possibility.    
 
Councilmember Heumann asked how long the design work on Cooper Road would be good for if 
construction wasn’t scheduled until 5 years later.  
 
Mayor noted staff has been aggressive in pursuing federal grants for these types of projects.   
 
Mr. Westrum reviewed the Neighborhood Park schedule.  To this date, only Centennial Park is in 
the CIP.  The other 4 parks are being added over the next 10 years.   Land has been purchased 
for all sites.  He said Councilmember Weninger had requested a look at a more aggressive 
schedule for park construction.  Mr. Westrum displayed Option 2 that shows 2 parks being 
completed in FY13-14 and the rest completed within 9 years.  
 
Councilmember Heumann asked about the $650,000 for Operations and Maintenance of the 
parks if accelerated.  Mr. Westrum said that would have to be built into the operating forecast.  
Mr. Dlugas said he would need to meet with Mr. Eynatten (Community Services) to minimalize 
new bodies being added.  Historically, for every two neighborhood parks that are constructed, a 
Groundskeeper position is added.  They will review the current process to see if any efficiency 
can be identified.   
 
Councilmember Weninger asked staff to review looking at only moving one park up and keeping 
the schedule as outlined in Option 1 the same.   
 
Councilmember Ellen said she thought there was a study being done on planting winter grass 
(rye) year round.  Asst. City Manager McDermott said there was discussion on year round and 
planting winter grass on ball fields, but the decision was that could double the maintenance.  He 
didn’t believe an actual pilot was done.  Discussion continued on the resting of fields.   
 
Mr. Westrum reviewed the Infrastructure Maintenance Projects and then the GO Debt Service 
Projections.  Councilmember Heumann asked if this information had been recalculated based on 
the new information received from the County Assessor.  Mr. Westrum replied that it had.  
However, the CIP has not been rebuilt on the new projections.  
 
Vice Mayor Sellers asked how important the debt service fund balance to our bond rating is.  Ms. 
Lang there is a fine balance to make sure we aren’t accumulating too much while giving the 
Council the flexibility and capacity to make decisions.   
 
 
 
 



Minutes of the Special Meeting 
Chandler City Council 

Monday, February 11, 2013 
Page 3  

Preliminary General Fund / One time Expenditures and 5-yr Fund Balance 
 
Ms. Lang stated she is estimating we will end the current year with $127,500 million.  That is the 
General Fund balance.  She noted that Lines 2-9 show the additional one-time revenue.  Ms. 
Lang addressed each line item.  
 
Mayor asked why the fund balance drops to $102,978 million in 14-15.  Ms. Lang said the next 3 
slides will show the expenditures that will be drawing that down.  
 
Councilmember Heumann asked what the ramifications would be based on the Governor’s 
proposed sales tax change.  Ms. Lang said it would be a loss of approx. $11 million per year in 
construction sales tax.   
 
Mayor Tibshraeny asked what year the Veterans Memorial contributions would be going out.  Ms. 
Lang said they show the revenue coming in being the full 2 million so there would be no impact to 
the General Fund with that project.    
 
Ms. Lang said after the last meeting they provided council with the history of the last 5 years of 
department savings and noted that has come down considerably.  They’ve set it at $2 million 
because this also includes the non-department cost centers. 
 
Ms. Lang continued to review the individual line items listed on the slides.   
 
In regards to Line 16 (Strategic Economic Development Reserve-Other) Councilmember 
Weninger asked if those funds roll or are allocated yearly.  Ms. Lang said the remaining balance  
at the end of the year falls back into fund balance and get reappropriated the following year.   
 
Mayor Tibshraeny asked what projects Gangplank has been involved in over the course of the 
prior 4 years.   
 
Ms. Lang noted on Line 28 – Desert Aquatic Center Utility conversion – Mesa School district is no 
longer using that pool.  We had an agreement on sharing costs – they paid utilities.  Mr. Dlugas 
commented they are attempting to work on a solution to get it metered strictly to the city or come 
up with a cost for a portion.  
 
Councilmember Heumann asked what the life cycle was on the SCBA equipment.  Mr. Dlugas 
replied 10 years.  
 
Councilmember Heumann asked what the city’s portion would be for the Sites 1-3 parking garage 
and if it was in this year’s CIP.  Mr. Dlugas said he would provide information to Council.  
 
Councilmember Heumann asked about the Downtown Redevelopment fund.  He asked what that 
includes.  Mr. Dlugas said the façade money was taken out.  He said this does include monies to 
acquire property and gave an example of Washington Street alignment.   Mr. Dlugas said this 
does include maintenance and acquisition.  Councilmember Heumann said he would like to have 
a conversation about the downtown area and what is envisioned over the next 5 years.  
 
Mayor Tibshraeny suggested dedicating a time to talk about the downtown area and components 
to determine a forward vision for the next 5 to 10 years. 
 



Minutes of the Special Meeting 
Chandler City Council 
Monday, March 11, 2013 
Page 4 

Vice Mayor Sellers commented that he felt many developers will become interested in the 
property south of this area and the city needs to be ready for that.   
 
Councilmember Weninger agreed that it would be helpful to set the vision and review the city 
owned properties and intended uses for them.  
 
Mayor Tibshraeny said Site 6 has probably the best chance of developing as something 
significant.   
 
In regards to questions on Tumbleweed Rec Center HVAC modifications (Line 45), Asst. City 
Manager Pat McDermott said the building design has caused issues with access to the air 
handlers.    
 
Regarding the purchase of the Print, Mail & Graphics Inserter (Line 49) Councilmember Heumann 
asked the percentage of customers receiving the water e-bill.  Ms. Lang said she would forward 
Council the information.  Councilmember Donovan asked for the amount of persons on e-pay.    
 
While explaining ITOC projects (Line 52) Councilmember Weninger asked if the Information & 
Technology Division is understaffed.  Ms. Lang said there has been an effort to reorganize in I.T. 
and some positions have recently been able to be filled. Mr. Dlugas added that by upgrading 
some positions, they’ve had greater success in recruiting.  Mr. Dlugas said while they probably 
could use additional staffing, this has been the closest to being fully staffed in some time.  Losing 
staff to the private sector has been an issue.   
 
Ms. Lang noted on Line 66 contains costs that don’t belong to any one particular department, this 
includes the fuel reserve.  This will cover the market difference in fuel in the event prices 
increase.   
 
Councilmember Weninger asked what the total dollar amount requested is for one time decision 
packages.  Ms. Lang said $3,570,000.   
 
 
Ms. Lang noted on the Transfer to Airport Enterprise Fund (Line 68), the Airport is not 100% self-
supporting as they do have capital expenses. They have equipment repair and match on federal 
grants. Councilmember Heumann asked what the plan is for self-sufficiency.  Asst. City Manager 
Pat McDermott said the opportunities to generate revenue come from the tie downs, fuel sales, 
and hangar and T-shade leases.  He stated without additional flights, fuel sales, lease 
expansions, there is not a lot of opportunity to increase revenue.  Councilmember Heumann said 
he felt it was time to figure out the strategy for making the airport self-sufficient or determining if 
the jobs that are out there are truly generating an economic impact to the city.  Ms. Lang noted 
this line item amount will fluctuate yearly depending on when the federal match on the grant is 
due.  
 
Contingencies and Reserves in Ending Fund Balance:   
 
Ms. Lang explained at the end of every year the ending fund balance is allocated among the 
various reserves.  These reserves are reviewed by the rating agencies.  The General Fund 
Contingency  remains at 12% of General Fund Revenues.  One-time Council Contingency 
remains at $325,000.  Budget Stabilization Reserve (Line 78) is being recommended again as 
with the uncertainties with legislation, sequestration, and the economy.  The fund can be drawn 
down for no more than 3 years in row per the financial policy.   



Minutes of the Special Meeting 
Chandler City Council 

Monday, February 11, 2013 
Page 5  

 
She explained that in Line 81 – the Ambulance Reserve, there is more revenue than expenses 
and the additional amount is placed in this fund for purchases of the ambulances in the future.  
Ms. Lang noted the amounts showing are cumulative each year and assume no purchases within 
the next 5 years.  
 
General Fund Balance Projection:  
 
Ms. Lang said these numbers have been updated.  Councilmember Heumann asked if the usage 
of money to accelerate the park construction was included in this.  Ms. Lang said only Option 1 is 
reflected in this number.   
 
Ms. Lang closed by saying the appropriate one time planned uses of General Fund Balance 
based are based on fiscal policy such as:  using the Infrastructure Maintenance Reserve to 
maintain existing infrastructure, accelerating key capital projects, funding on-time operating 
needs, substituting general fund for bond funding, avoiding property tax rate increases.   
 
Vice Mayor Sellers added that it would also be important to have a separate discussion regarding 
transit and transit funding and our level of need.  
 
 
Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:55 p.m. 

 
 
 
ATTEST:  __________________________  ______________________________ 
                         City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approved:  April 11, 2013 
 
 
 
 
     CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the 
special meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 11th day of March 2013.  I 
further certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
DATED this __________ day of April, 2013. 
 
 
                __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 
 


